
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA PACKET 
 

 
 
 

September 8, 2014 
Claremont City Hall    

7:00 pm 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 CITY OF CLAREMONT  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  

September 8, 2014  

7:00 PM 

Council Chambers, Claremont City Hall  

 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA  

 

A. Regular Meeting Minutes – August 4, 2014 

B. Closed Session Minutes- August 4,2014  

 

6. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARING  

 

A. City of Claremont Voluntary Annexation 14-02   

 

8. OLD BUSINESS  

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Ordinance 03-14 Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Amendment   

B. Ordinance 04-14 US 70 Speed Limit  

C. Ordinance 05-14 BGA Drive Annexation (ANX 14-02)  

D. Ordinance 07-14 Apple Inc. Development Agreement  

E. Police Department Phase III Bid Tabulation  

F. Ordinance 06-14 C-5195 Sidewalk Project Fund  

 

10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Department Dashboard Report  

B. Parks & Recreation Committee  

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

 

12. CLOSED SESSION 

 

13. ADJOURN 



 

“A progressive City dedicated to preserving small town values while planning for the future” 

 
City of Claremont Board & Committee Meetings 

 
City Council Meeting             October 6th         Council Chambers 7:00pm 

 1st Monday of each month 

 

Planning Board       October 13th                 Council Chambers 7:00 pm  

2nd Monday of each month 

 

Appearance Committee     September 8th             Claremont Library 6:00 pm  

2nd  Monday of each month 

 

Parks & Recreation      September 22nd         Claremont City Offices 6:00 pm   

4th Monday of each month 

 

Youth Council      October 5th                   Council Chambers 3:00 pm 

1st Sunday of each month 

 

Claremont Tailgate Market     City Hall Parking Lot 3-6pm  

Every Friday beginning April 26th  

 

SAVE THE DATE:  

 



EXHIBIT 5 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014  
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  
 
 

 

 
Action Requested:  Approval of Consent Agenda   

 
A. Regular Meeting Minutes – August 4, 2014  
B. Closed Session Minutes- August 4, 2014  
 

 
 

Recommendation: Approve the Consent Agenda  

 
 
 
 

 



Monday, August 4, 2014                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 1 of 4 

 

City of Claremont Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 4, 2014 

 
The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the council chambers located at 
Claremont City Hall at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, August 4, 2014. 
 
The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor Shawn Brown, 
Councilmember Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Dayne Miller, Councilmember Nicky Setzer, 
Councilmember Dale Setzer and Councilmember Dale Sherrill. 
 
The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Manager Doug Barrick, City 
Attorney Bob Grant, Finance Officer Stephanie Corn, Administrative Support Clerk Wendy Helms, 
Rick Damron, Lieutenant Allen Long, Jessica Miller, Fire Chief Bart Travis, Melinda Bumgarner, Police 
Chief Gary Bost, Sgt. Duane Cozzen, Public Works Director Tom Winkler and City Planner Shelley 
Stevens. 
  
Others in attendance were: Robert Smith, Andrea Ramsey, Jessalyn Johnson, Dennis Richards, Matthew 
Ross, Dalton Miller, Allen Barkley, Tyler Terry, Jeff Barkley, Dedee Barkley, Ramona Cozzen and 
Brianna Cozzen. 
 
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Shawn R. Brown called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
The agenda was approved as presented.   
 
 
3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The invocation was given by Rev. Dennis Richards. Councilmember Timothy Lowrance led the pledge 
of allegiance. 
 
 
4. MAYOR’S REPORT 
Mayor Brown spoke briefly about several thank you notes.  He also recognized Les Sigmon for a $2,000 
donation to the P.J. Stanley Scholarship Fund. 
 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. July 7, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes – Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to 
accept July 7, 2014 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember Nicky Setzer seconded the 



Monday, August 4, 2014                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 2 of 4 

motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
B.  July 7, 2014 Closed Session Minutes- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion to accept 
June 2, 2014 closed session minutes as presented. Councilmember Nicky Setzer seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously.   
 
C.  Resolution 06-14 Voluntary Annexation Sufficiency- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a 
motion to approve the voluntary annexation sufficiency.  Second was made by Councilmember Nicky 
Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 

D.  Resolution 07-14 Voluntary Annexation Public Hearing- Councilmember Timothy Lowrance 
made a motion to accept Resolution 07-14, to hold a public hearing for questions of annexation of the 
area described herein will be held at Claremont City Hall, 3288 East Main Street, Claremont, NC 28610 
at 7:00PM on Monday September 1, 2014.  
 
Catawba County Parcel Identification Number: 375112872357and located at 2421 BGA Drive 
comprising 9.310 Acres and furthermore defined in a plat map recorded at the Catawba County Register 
of Deeds in Plat Book 51- Page 158 as Tract E.  
 
 Second was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
E.  Resolution 08-14 Awarding Retiring Police Sergeant Duane Cozzen- Duane Cozzen has served 
as a member of the Claremont Police Department for a period of 15 years and as Sergeant  for all of 
those 15 years and is retiring from the City of Claremont Police Department on August 1, 2014. Council 
presented Duane with his badge and service weapon. Councilmember Timothy Lowrance made a motion 
to approve Resolution 08-14.  Second was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
6. CITIZEN’S CONCERN’S & COMMENTS- none 
 
 
7. PRESENTATIONS  
 
A.  P.J. Stanley Memorial Scholarships- Brenda Stanley presented (2) two, Five Hundred dollar 
scholarships.  
 
The PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship Committee has reviewed the applications for the Fall 2014 
scholarship awards to honor former City Councilman James “PJ” Stanley. The recipients of the Fall 
2014 awards are:  
 
Matthew Ross  
2012 Graduate of Bunker Hill High School  
Member of the Oxford Fire Dept & Claremont Rescue   
Attending CVCC for Fire Protection Technology  
 
 
Allen Barkley  
2013 Graduate of Bunker Hill High School   
Member of the Claremont Fire Dept 
Attending CVCC for Fire Protection Technology 
 
 



Monday, August 4, 2014                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 3 of 4 

B.  Police Department- Police Chief Gary Bost and Mayor Shawn Brown presented Duane Cozzen 
with his badge and weapon.  Duane Cozzen has served as a member of the Claremont Police Department 
for a period of 15 years and as Sergeant for all of those 15 years and is retiring from the City of 
Claremont Police Department on August 1, 2014.  
 
 
8.  OLD BUSINESS- none 
 
 
9. NEW BUSINEES- 
 
A. Resolution 05-14 Exchange of Land Rights- The City has been approached by Apple Inc to revise 
the existing resolution of exchange rights to transfer the City owned land to Apple Inc. instead of Duke 
Energy. All other aspects of the resolution remain the same. Motion was made by Councilmember Dale 
Sherrill to accept Resolution 05-14.  Second was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
B. Ordinance 02-14 Animal Updates- The City has been approached by the County to align our 
ordinances with the County code for Animal services. In order to streamline this process the proposed 
ordinance references the County code and aligns the power to enforce both the City Code and County 
code for both Claremont Police and County Animal Control officers as allowed by state law for mutual 
aid.  
 
The proposed changes also strengthen our existing code for animal nuisance issues and sets forth 
enforceable penalties for the Police and Animal control to enforce.  
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance to accept Ordinance 02-14.  Second was made 
by Councilmember Nicky Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
C. Harris Local Government MyGovHub Web Portal- This web portal for online bill pay will allow 
customers more transparency in their billing information and builds on the city’s ability to expand our e-
profile. This portal will allow for online bill notification, billing history, usage history, & user set up 
configurations. The City will benefit from the flexi bill integration for real time payments, and ability to 
save costs over time with e-billing. The portal has a onetime payment of $2,250 and a yearly ongoing 
charge of $1,500 per year. The customers will assume the usage charges in the transaction fees with a 
standard fee costing the customer $2.25 per transaction.    
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller to accept the contract with MyGovHub, for online 
water/sewer payments.  Second was made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A. Monthly Department Dashboard Report- Public Works Director Tom Winkler thanked all 
departments for their assistance while his crew made water connections on Main Street. 
 
B.  Parks and Recreation Committee- Jessica Miller spoke on behalf of the Recreation Committee.  
She gave updates for movies in the park.  The next movie will be held on August 16th at 9 p.m.  In case 
of rain the movie will be moved to the fire department.  Plans are under way for this year’s Scaremont 
Park. 
 



Monday, August 4, 2014                                   Regular Meeting Minutes                           Page 4 of 4 

 
11. CITY MANAGERS REPORT 
 
City Manager Barrick informed council and those in attendance that NC DOT would start paving on 
Lookout Street.  Mr. Barrick also spoke about the STEM Tours.  These tours will be provided by an 
Innovation Grant.  These tours will benefit River Bend Middle School and Bunker Hill High School.  
Lastly he presented (5) five new AED’s to the Police, Fire and Administration Departments.   
 
 
12. CLOSED SESSION: Motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer to go into a closed 
session in reference to G.S. 143-318.11(a) (4) at 7:45 p.m.  Second was made by Councilmember Dayne 
Miller.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer to recess the closed session at 8:19 p.m. Second was 
made by Councilmember Timothy Lowrance.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
13. ADJOURN- Motion was made by Councilmember Dayne Miller to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 
p.m.  Second was made by Councilmember Dale Setzer.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Wendy L. Helms, Administrative Support Clerk 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
     Shawn R. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
Attested: 
 
 
____________________________ 
  Douglas L. Barrick, City Clerk  



EXHIBIT 6 
 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014          

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 
 

Action Requested: Citizen’s Concerns and Comments  
 
North Carolina General Statues require that the City Council allow time at each public 

meeting for Citizen Input.  

 
 

 

 
Recommendation: Hear Public Concerns and Comments   
 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 7A 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: September 8,2014   
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Doug Barrick , City Clerk 
 
 

 

 
Action Requested:  Hold Public Hearing for Annexation 14-02 

 

North Carolina General Statues require that the City Council Hold a Public Hearing 
prior to any changes in the Corporate Limits of the City. 
 
The owners of 2421 BGA Drive are requesting voluntary annexation into the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Claremont. This 9.310 acre tract is currently in the ETJ of the City 
of Claremont and is contiguous to current Corporate Limits, served by City Utilities, and 
is served by all other city services. The City Clerk certifies the sufficiency of the request 
as the City tries to honor voluntary annexation requests, the proposed annexation would 
expand the City’s tax base, and the proposed annexation will not hamper the Cities 
ability to deliver public services to this parcel 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation: Hold Public Hearing  

 
 
 

 





 51,200 s.f. manufacturing space with 28’-32’ ceilings 
throughout 

 Expandable to over 128,000 s.f.  

 9.31 acres zoned M-1 (Industrial) 

 Fast track local permitting available 

 Duke Energy—Service will be customized to meet   
client’s needs 

 City of Claremont looped water line—12” 

 City of Claremont wastewater—12” 

 Piedmont Natural Gas—2”, 60psi 

 Telecommunications—AT&T, DukeNet 

 8” thick insulated precast concrete wall panels 

 Roof—2 layers of 2.5” iso insulation for an R-30 value; 
45 mil TPO membrane roof with a 15-year warranty 

 4 dock doors—8’ x 9’; 3 additional knock out panels 

 1 drive in door—12’ x 14’ 

 70 parking spaces  

 1.8 miles to I-40 (E/W) and 19.3 miles to I-77 (N/S) 

Claremont Spec Building—51,200 s.f. 
 Shell complete no later than 7/31/2014 

 Final Build-out can be completed within 120 days 

 50 minutes to Charlotte-Douglas International Airport 

 Low Tax Rate—Combined $0.99/$100 valuation 

 Metro population of over 360,000 with a workforce of 
250,000 and 25,000 underemployed workers 

 Metro Area ranked Top 6 in the US for Cost of Doing 
Business (2006-2013) 

 Within one-day drive of 65% of US population 

 Shell Building “as is” sale price is $1,950,000 or base 
lease rate of $3.40 with building upfits customized and 
added to base lease rate 

 Lease rate estimated for finished building between 
$4.50 to $4.75 depending upon term and tenant credit 
including 2,000 s.f. of air conditioned office space,     
6-inch concrete slab, plant area heated, fire sprinklers, 
electrical lighting and power system based on 400 
amp service, heavy duty asphalt truck drives and light 
duty employee parking 

 Building can also be upfit to client’s specifications, 
please call for pricing 

 New Manufacturing Space 

2421 BGA Drive, Claremont, NC 28610 



Claremont Spec Building 
51,200 s.f. (expandable) - $1,950,000 





 1.8 miles to I-40 (E/W) 

 19.3 miles to I-77 (N/S) 

 50 minutes to Charlotte-Douglas  
International Airport 

 50 minutes to Charlotte Intermodal 
Facility 

 Less than 4 hours to the Port of 
Charleston, SC 

 4 hours, 15 minutes to the Port of 
Wilmington, NC 

 Less than one-day drive time to 65% 
of the US population: 

 4 hours to Atlanta, GA 

 6.5 hours to Pittsburgh, PA 

 7 hours to Dayton, OH 

 9.5 hours to New York, NY 

 9.5 hours to Detroit, MI 

 11 hours to Miami, FL 

 11 hours to Chicago, IL 

 

Catawba County EDC 
1960-B 13th Avenue Drive SE 

Hickory, NC  28602 
828-267-1564 

email:  edc@catawbacountync.gov 
www.catawbaedc.org 





EXHIBIT 9A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager    

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: Approve Ordinance 03-14 Budget Amendment    

 

This budget amendment appropriates funds for the following projects:  

 

NCDENR Grant  

Two Cell Phone Tower Modification Permits  

Claremont Daze Sponsorships 

Christmas Parade Sponsorships  

Fire Dept FEMA 800 Mhz Radio Grant  

 9 Mobile Radios & 15 Walkie Radios = A $94,800 Value  

Initial Contribution to the C-5195 Sidewalk Grant Project Fund  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance 03-14 

 

 

 



__________________________ 

Bob Grant, City Attorney  
 

City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 03-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT AMENDING CLAREMONT  

MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

General Fund  

Revenues     Increase  Decrease  

Miscellaneous Revenues  

10.3350.0000     $11,276    

Fund Balance  

10.3990.0000     $91,480 

Total       $102,756  

 

Expenditures  

Maintenance of Grounds  

10.6200.1500     $5,276  
Miscellaneous Expenses  

10.4200.5700     $6,000  

Recreation Projects 

10.6200.7300     $5,000  

Parade  

10.6200.8200     $2,000  

Capital Outlay  

10.5300.7400     $9,480 

Transfer to C-5195 Sidewalk Fund   

10.4200.9800     $75,000 

Total      $102,756  

  

INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014.  

ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014. 

_______________________, 

MAYOR Shawn R. Brown  

ATTEST:  

____________________________  

Doug Barrick, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  



EXHIBIT 9B 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager    

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: Approve Ordinance 04-14 US 70 Speed Limit     

 

The City has been approached by NCDOT to clean up our existing City ordinance in 

regards to the 25mph speed limit area along US 70. When the City enacted the 

ordinance Us &0 was both US 70 &64. Now that Main Street is no longer US 64, 

NCDOT has asked to remove that wording and clean up the files. The speed limits will 

remain the same.  

 

 

 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance 04-14 

 

 

 



Certification of Municipal Declaration
To Enact Speed Limits and Request for Concurrence

1068326

12 CATAWBA CLAREMONT

Municipal Speed Zones

US 70 25 25

From a point 0.145 mi. east of SR 1715 (N. Oxford St.), eastward to a point 0.248 mi. east of SR 1716 (Lookout St.).

Concurring State Ordinance Number:

Division: County: Municipality:

Type:

Road: Car: Truck:

Description:

I, ___________________________________, Clerk of _____________________, do hereby certify that the municipal 

governing body, pursuant to the authority granted by G.S. 20-141(f), determined upon the basis of an engineering and 

traffic investigation and duly declared, on the ________ day of  ___________, 20______, the speed limits as set forth 

above on the designated portion of the State Highway System, which shall become effective when the Department of 

Transportation has passed a concurring ordinance and signs are erected giving notice of the authorized speed limit.

The said municipal declaration is recorded as follows:

Minute Book: _____________        Page:____________       Ordinance/Resolution Number: _________________

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my

hand and the municipal seal this _________ day

of  __________________, 20_______.

________________________________________
                              (signature)                                                                                         (municipal seal)

Municipal Certification

MPH MPH

Division: _______________________________        Title: _________________________________        Date: _______________

Department of Transportation Approval

Region: _______________________________          Title: _________________________________        Date: _______________

Page 1 of 1





 

 

City Council of the City of Claremont 

 

Catawba County, North Carolina 

 

Ordinance No. 04-14 

 

AN ORDINACE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT ESTABLISHING SPEED LIMITS ON 

NCDOT MAINTAINED ROADS  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

WHEARAS, the N. C. Department of Transportation establishes speed limits on all roads within 

the State Highway system under North Carolina General Statue 20-141 (f) and,  

 

WHEARAS, US Highway 70 (Main Street) is under control of the N.C. Department of 

Transportation.  

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS ESTABLISHED that the Claremont Code of Ordinances be revised 

to show the following changes;  

 

A-3 Section 105  

 

Revise Subsection (1) to:  

 

US 70 (Main Street) between the intersection with Pine Street and the Intersection with Spring 

Street. Further descried as from a point .145 miles east of SR 1715 (N. Oxford St.), eastward to a 

point 0.248 miles east of SR 1716 (Lookout St.)  

 

 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on 

September 8, 2014  

 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014.  

 

_______________________, 

MAYOR Shawn R Brown 

ATTEST:  

____________________________  

Doug Barrick, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

__________________________ 

Bob Grant, City Attorney  



EXHIBIT 9C 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014      
      
 
To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 
From:  Doug Barrick , City Clerk 
 
 

 

 
Action Requested:  Approve Ordinance 05-14 Extension of the Claremont 

Corporate Limits ( ANX 14-02)   

 

The owners of 2421 BGA Drive are requesting voluntary annexation into the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Claremont. This 9.310 acre tract is currently in the ETJ of the City 
of Claremont and is contiguous to current Corporate Limits, served by City Utilities, and 
is served by all other city services. The City Clerk certifies the sufficiency of the request 
as the City tries to honor voluntary annexation requests, the proposed annexation would 
expand the City’s tax base, and the proposed annexation will not hamper the Cities 
ability to deliver public services to this parcel 
 
A Public Hearing has been held and all requirements to annex this contiguous parcel 
have been fulfilled.  
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance   

 
 
 

 



 

 

City Council of the City of Claremont 

 

Catawba County, North Carolina 

 

Ordinance No. 05-14 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

CLAREMONT (ANX 14-02) 

 

WHEREAS, the Claremont City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-31, as amended, 

to annex the area described herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Claremont City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate 

the sufficiency of said petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a public hearing on 

the question of annexation was held in the Council Chambers of the Claremont City Hall at 7:00 

o'clock, p.m. on the 8th day of September ,2014,  after due notice; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Claremont City Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of G.S. 

160A-31;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CLAREMONT CITY COUNCIL 

THAT,  

 

Section 1.  By the virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described 

territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of Claremont as of the 8th day of 

September, 2014: 

 

Being all of Catawba County Parcel Identification Number: 375112872357 and located at 2421 

BGA Drive comprising 9.35 Acres and furthermore defined in a plat map recorded at the Catawba 

County Register of Deeds in Plat Book 74- Page 18 as Tract E.  

 

Section 2.  Upon and after the 8th day of September 2014, the above described territory and its 

citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in the 

City of Claremont and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the 

City of Claremont.  Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-

58.10. 

 

Section 3.  The Mayor of the City of Claremont shall cause to be  recorded in the office of the 

Register of Deeds of Catawba County, and in the office of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, 

North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 hereof, together 

with a duly certified copy of this ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County 

Board of Elections, as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 



 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on September 

8, 2014. 

 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014.  

 

 

_______________________, 

MAYOR Shawn R. Brown 

ATTEST:  

 

____________________________  

Doug Barrick, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

 

__________________________ 

Bob Grant, City Attorney  
 

NORTH CAROLINA, CATAWBA COUNTY 

I, A NOTARY PUBLIC OF THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, CERTIFY THAT MAYOR 

SHAWN R. BROWN AND CITY CLERK DOUG BARRICK, PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE 

ME THIS DAY AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUTION OF THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT.  

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL STAMP OR SEAL, THIS __________, DAY OF 

______________________________, 2014. 

                                             ___________________________________________ 

SEAL OR STAMP                             PUBLIC NOTARY 

 

 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _______________________________________ 

 

 



EXHIBIT 9D 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager    

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: Approve Ordinance 07-14 Apple Development Agreement     

 

 

As required by NCGS 160A- 400.22 The City Council must formalize the completed 

Development Agreement by ordinance. Apple has now executed the agreement and we 

are ready to finalize the agreement via ordinance.  

 

 

 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance 07-14 

 

 

 



 

 

City Council of the City of Claremont 

 

Catawba County, North Carolina 

 

Ordinance No. 07-14 

 

AN ORDINACE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT APPROVING DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN APPLE, INC. & THE CITY OF CLAREMONT  

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

WHEARAS, the City of Claremont has deemed it appropriate to enter into a development 

agreement with Apple Inc, pursuant to part 3D or Article 19 of Chapter 160A of the General 

Statues of North Carolina; and  

 

 

WHEARAS, A public hearing was held on July 7, 2014 after due notice having been legally 

advertised pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statues 160A- 364; and  

 

 

WHEARAS, The proposed development agreement complies with the provisions of North 

Carolina general Statues 160A-400.23 and 160A-400.25; and 

 

 

WHEARAS, The City Council gave preliminary approval of the proposed development 

agreement on July 7, 2014 subject to acceptance by Apple Inc of the terms and conditions therein 

and execution by Apple Inc of the development agreement ; and  

 

 

WHEARAS, Apple Inc. has now executed the proposed development agreement; and  

 

 

WHEARAS, North Carolina General Statue 160A- 400.22 requires that a development 

agreement entered into pursuant to part 3d of Article 19 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina 

General Statues be approved by ordinance  

 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS ESTABLISHED by the City Council of the City of Claremont that; 

The development agreement attached here to as exhibit A is approved as an ordinance of the City 

of Claremont pursuant to North Carolina General Statue 160A-400.22   

 

 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on 

September 8, 2014  



 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014.     

 

_______________________, 

MAYOR Shawn R Brown 

ATTEST:  

 

____________________________   

Doug Barrick, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

__________________________ 

Bob Grant, City Attorney  

 
 









































EXHIBIT 9E 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014  

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Review and Accept Police Station Phase III Bids  

 

On August 26th at 4pm the City Manager and Police Chief opened bids for the Police 

Station Phase III Up fit Project. At this time the apparent low bidder is Lail Builders Inc. 

The City is over budget on this project and will be working with the low bidder. Our 

approach will be to have the City Council approve these bids and engage NCGS 143-

129(b) to allow the City to make some reasonable changes to allow the project to return 

closer our budget. Our goal is to have meetings and conversations with the low bidder 

and bring back a contract to the October 6, 2014 City Council Meeting for approval and 

notice to proceed. 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Review & Accept Bids and Allow City Manager & Police Chief to 

negotiate under NCGA 143-129(b)    

 

 

 

 





Contractor Base Bid 

Add Alternate # 1 

HVAC 

Add Alternate #2 

Garage Doors 

Total Bid with 

Alternates 

Lail Builders Inc $211,632.00 $700.00 $5,650.00 $217,982.00

Jack Sipe Construciton $223,721.00 $535.00 $4,957.00 $229,213.00

Moss Marlow $237,100.00 $500.00 $5,810.00 $243,410.00

Matthews Construction $248,000.00 $828.00 $6,245.00 $255,073.00

Bids were opened and read aloud at 4pm on August 26,2014 at the Claremont CityHall 

Witnessed: Witnessed:

Gary Bost Doug Barrick 

Chief of Police City Manager 

City of Claremont 
Police Dept Phase III 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 



EXHIBIT 9F 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8,2014       

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Ordinance 06-14 Project Fund for C-5195 CMAQ Sidewalks 

 

The City  of Claremont applied for and was awarded a CMAQ federally funded 

sidewalk project for the construction of sidewalks in various areas of the City to include:  

 

1. Centennial Blvd from North Oxford Street to North Lookout Street  

2. South Depot from terminus to Frazier Drive with a crosswalk  

3. Calvin Street from North Depot to North Lookout  

4. Yount Street from South Depot to Bethlehem  

5. Bethlehem Street from Yount to Old Catawba Street  

6. Calvin Street from North Lookout to School Street  

7. School Street from Calvin Street to US 70  

 

This grant award is for a total of $650,000 with 80% federal money coming through 

NCDOT and 20% of the project funding coming from the City of Claremont. This 

breaks down to $520,000 from NCDOT and the City funding $130,000. The City 

Council Approved the NCDOT agreement on May 6, 2013 and approved an agreement 

with the Wooten Company for Engineering on July 7, 2014. At this time $75,000 of 

Fund Balance is proposed to be moved into this Fund to cover engineering and the 

beginning of construction. More funds will be moved later.  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance 06-14  

 

 

 

 

 





City Council of the City of Claremont  

Catawba County, North Carolina  

Ordinance No. 06-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT ESTABLISHING A PROJECT 

FUND FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF A SIDEWALK GRANT 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAREMONT DOES HEREBY ORDAIN 

AS FOLLOWS: Pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statues of North 
Carolina, the following capital project ordinance is hereby adopted:  

Section 1: The project authorized is the C-5195 Sidewalk Grant project to be financed 

jointly by the City of Claremont and NCDOT.  

 

Section 2: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the C-5195 

Sidewalk Fund will be provided from the following sources:  

 
C-5195 Sidewalk Project Fund  

 

Revenues     Increase  Decrease  

 

NCDOT Contributions  

80.3483.0000     $520,000 

 

Transfer from General Fund  

80.3970.0100     $130,000  

  

Total     $650,000 
 

Section 3: The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the C-5195 Sidewalk Fund: 

 

C-5195 Sidewalk Project Fund  

 

Expenditures     Increase  Decrease  

 

Engineering  

80.5710.0450     $90,000 

 

Contracted Services    

80.5710.4500     $560,000     

     

 Total     $650,000 

 

Section 4: This Capital Project Fund shall continue until the project is complete  



 

Section 5: Payments from this fund shall be authorized by the City Manager  

 

Section 6: This project is effective upon adoption  
 

INTRODUCED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014.  

 

ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Claremont on  

September 8, 2014 .  

 

_______________________, 

MAYOR Shawn R. Brown  

ATTEST:  

 

____________________________  

Doug Barrick, City Clerk  

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: __________________________ 

Bob Grant, City Attorney  

 
 



EXHIBITS 10/11 

 

 

Department, Committee & Manager Reports  
 

 

Date of Meeting: September 8, 2014    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council 

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Allow Departments, Committees & Manager to report on 

monthly activities and take questions.    

 

Item 10 
 

A. Monthly Department Dashboard Report  
B. Parks & Recreation Committee 

 
 
Item 11 
 
City Managers Report  
 

 

 

Recommendation: Take Reports  

 

 

 

 

 



Month YTD Month YTD % In % Out 
854 5779 Calls for Service 28 212 4% 17%

106 794 Working Fires 3 36 17% 14%

63 489 Training Hours 425 2381

6 57 Prevention Programs 6 112

12 62 False Alarms 5 23 Month YTD 

Warrants 2 69 EMS Calls 9 49 Calls for Service 51 513

Open Cases 6 36 Training Hours 33 693

Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Month YTD Month YTD Month YTD 
Vehicles Serviced 11 65 Water Turned Off 21 102 Zoning Permits 6 27

Recycling Tonnage 9.75 48.05 Water Taps 0 9 Residential Permits 3 13

Solid Waste Tonnage 33.23 243.07 Water Purchased 8,907,400 57,178,000 Commercial  Permits 3 9

Street Lights Replaced 9 48 Water Sold 6,897,013 49,727,498 Enforcement Cases 9 40

Work Orders 33 277 McLin  WWTP Avg. 138,000 160,571 Planning Board Work 2 18

Sewer Line Jetted 1,518 11,882 North WWTP Avg. 68,000 74,000 Safety Permits 0 7

Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements Other Activities & Announcements 

Sgt. Duane Cozzen Retired on August 1, 2014 

Ordered new patrol vehicle & open bids for Phase 

III of the Police Station renovations . 

Sidewalks added on Cardinal Lane as well & new 

bench pad on Main St. Worked with River Bend 

Middle School on upgrades to their Cross Country 

Track 

699 of 826 AMR Meters Installed to Date 

Installed 360 feet of 12 Inch DI Water Line on 

BGA Drive for the Shell Building 

Working on Land Development Plan, Reviewed 

several plats, Finished CUPs, Scanning 

plats/maps, Waiting on pick up of 3 permits 

51 calls last month, response time was 5:29. 

Had some vandalism at the Squad, Claremont 

Police came out and investigated. Claremont 

Rescue Squad ahs been hosting some TR-VMR 

Rescue Squad 

Public Works Utility Dept. Planning & Zoning Dept.

Claremont August 2014 Dashboard Report 

Calls Answered 

Citations Served 

Warnings 

Number of Arrests 

Accidents 

 Police Dept. Fire Dept. Financials 

General Fund 

Enterprise Fund 

Participated in a training fire with the Conover Fire 

Department & Joined them for National Night Out. 

Preplanned CertainTeed & Pryisman and 10 other 

commercial buildings 





City of Claremont  
Fiscal Year 2015 

Resolution Index  
 

Resolutions 

Number     Title      Meeting Date 

01-14     Appreance Committee Appointment    July 7, 2014 

02-14    Carolina Thread Trail Grant Support  July 7, 2014  

03-14    Exchange Land Rights (Apple)   July 7, 2014  

04-14    Surplus Property     July 7, 2014  

05-14    Exchange Land Rights Amendment (03-14) August 4, 2014  

06-14    Sufficiency of Annex (14-02)    August 4, 2014  

07-14    Public Hearing Annex (BGA) (14-02)  August 4, 2014  

08-14    Surplus Property (Cozzen Gun)   August 4, 2014  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Claremont  

Fiscal Year 2015  
Ordinance Index  

 

Ordinances 

Number     Title      Meeting Date 

 01-14    Budget Ordinance (FD & AED)   July 7, 2014 

02-14     Animal Control Updates    August 4, 2014  

03-14    Budget Amendment (Various/FEMA)  September 8, 2014  

04-14    US 70 Speed Limits     September 8, 2014  

05-14    Annexation 14-02 BGA Drive    September 8, 2014  

06-14    C-5195 Capital Project Fund    September 8, 2014  

07-14    Development Agreement with Apple Inc.  September 8, 2014  


	Agenda Cover Page
	RFBA Consent Agenda
	August 4 2014
	August 4 2014 Closed Session
	RFBA CCC
	RFBA Annex 14-02  Public Hearing
	W%3A%5CWebsites%5CCatawba%5CTif%5CPlat%5C00740018%2Etif_doc%2Epdf
	Claremont Spec Bldg Marketing
	53efa20062c14.image
	RFBA Ordinance 03-14docx
	Ordinance 03-14 Budget Amendment
	RFBA Ordinance 04-14docx
	1068326
	Ordinance 04-14 NCDOT Speed Limits
	RFBA Ordinance 05-14 ANX 14-02
	Ordinance 05-14 Annexation 14-2
	RFBA PD Phase III bids docx
	2978-A4 07-24-14
	Claremont PD Phase III Bid Tab 8-26-14
	RFBA Ordinance 06-14 C-5195 Project Fund 
	Sidewalk General Summary
	RFBA Reports
	ClaremontDaze
	Resolution and Ordiance Index FY 15



